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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

JAN 2 8 PnPfi
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES "

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

Lori A We.ver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 svww.dhhs.nh.gov
Katja S. Fox
Director

December 31,2025

Her Excellency. Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter Into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with The Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire DBA Center for Life Management (VC#174116) Derry. NH to add
funding and modify scope for the continued provision of Continuum of Care housing services, by
Increasing the price limitation by $129,272 from $7,533,731 to $7,663,003 with no change to the
contract completion date of June 30. 2029, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 28. 2023, Item #38.
and amended on September 25. 2024. Item #23.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027, and
are anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Years 2028 and 2029. upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust
budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office. If needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is to add funding and modify scope for the continued provision of Continuum
of Care housing services as further described below. This request Is Sole Source because MOP
150 requires all amendments to agreements originally approved as sole source to be identified
as sole source. Federal regulations require all procurement efforts for these services to be
directed by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) through an annual
Continuum of Care competitive application process. The Department must contract with the
vendor selected as a result of this HUD process.

The purpose of this request is to add funding for the Permanent Supportive Housing and
Coordinated Entry projects as awarded by HUD to support the Contractor's continued delivery of
Continuum of Care housing services. The additional funding Is the result of the Consolidated
Appropriations Act. 2024, which authorizes HUD to make reasonable cost of living adjustments
to renewal amounts to help afford Increasing costs of operations due to inflation. This
amendment is also to make minor scope modifications to reflect updated HUD language.

Approximately 65 households will continue to be served at any given time annually
through the Permanent Supportive Housing projects. A range of 100-500 will continue to
be served through the Coordinated Entry project.
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The Contractor will continue to deliver Permanent Supportive Housing services offering
long-term rental assistance for participants with a disability, as defined by HUD. Additionally, the
Contractor will continue providing participants with quick access to the most appropriate services
and housing resources available through Coordinated Entry and provide targeted housing
services, supportive services and case management. Overall, the Contractor works to maximize
each participant's ability to live more Independently by providing connections to community and
mainstream services.

The Department will continue to monitor services by reviewing annual reports provided by
the Contractor and conducting annual reviews related to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual requirements.

Should the Govemorand Council not authorize this request, the Contractor will not receive
additional funding, as awarded by HUD, to support cost of living adjustments, and the contract
scope will not reflect current HUD language, which may result in fewer permanent housing options
and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families experiencing
homelessness in unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the Department will be
out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result In a loss of federal funding for these
and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

The Department has determined that the Contractor is in good standing with the Secretary
of State's Office, has secured the required levels of Insurance, and has provided evidence of
authority to execute and be bound by the contract. The Contractor Is a non-profit organization,
and the Department has also confirmed the Contractor is registered and In good standing with
the Department of Justice's Charitable Division.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAINs
NH0003L1T002417, NH0014L1T002417, NH0096L1T002409

Respectfully submitted.

^orl A. Weaver
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPTOF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS

& HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

100% Federal Funds

Center for Life Management Vendor#174116

NH0003 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $299,319 $0 $299,319

2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307050 $329,235 $0 $329,235

Sub Total $628,554 $0 $628,554

NH0014 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $734,022 $0 $734,022

2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307050 $887,926 $0 $887,926

Sub Total $1,621,948 $0 $1,621,948

NH0096 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0 $0 $0

2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307050 $76,577 $0 $76,577

Sub Total $76,577 $0 $76,577

I  Subtotal 79271 $2,327,0791 loT $2,327,0791

05-95-92-921510-31700000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV;

HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

100% Federal Funds

NH0003 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2026 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $329,235 $44,200 $373,435

2027 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $329,235 $0 $329,235

2028 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $329,235 $0 $329,235

2029 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $329,235 $0 $329,235

Sub Total $1,316,940 $44,200 $1,361,140

NH0014 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2026 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $895,851 $74,107 $969,958

2027 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $895,851 $6,737 $902,588

2028 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $895,851 $0 $895,851

2029 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157050 $895,851 $0 $895,851

Sub Total $3,583,404 $80,844 $3,664,248

NH0096 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2026 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157058 $76,577 $4,228 $80,805

2027 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157058 $76,577 $0 $76,577

2028 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157058 $76,577 $0 $76,577

2029 072-509073 Grants Federal 92157058 $76,577 $0 $76,577

Sub Total $306,308 $4,228 $310,536

1  SubtoUl 31701 $5,206,6521 $129,2721 $5,335,9241

1  Overall Totall $7,533,7311 $129,2721 $7,663,0031

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care CLM contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and The Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire DBA Center for Life Management ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 28, 2023 (Item #38), as amended on September 25, 2024 (Item #23), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation, to read:

$7,663,003

2. Modify Exhibit A - Revisions to Standard Provisions, by adding Subsection 1.4., to read:

1.4. Paragraph 6, Compliance by Contractor with Laws and Regulations/Equal Employment
Opportunity, Subparagraph 6.1., is amended as follows:

6.1. In connection with the performance of the Services, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable statutes, laws, regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not
limited to, RSA 151:21 Patients' Bill of Rights, civil rights and equal employment
opportunity laws, and the Governor's order on Respect and Civility in the Workplace,
Executive Order 2020-01. In addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies
of the United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules,
regulations and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the State or
the United States issue to implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.

3. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 1.1.2.3.1., to read:

1.1.2.3.1. Reserved.

4. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 1.1.2.9., to read:

1.1.2.9. The Contractor must ensure that all persons who are fleeing or attempting to flee
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking have immediate and
confidential access to available crisis services within the defined CE System
geographic area as described in Section 1.1.2.3. and are referred to the Coordinated
Entry Domestic Violence Regional Access Point upon participant request.

5. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Sections 1.1.2.10., to read:

1.1.2.10. The Contractor must ensure that all persons served by the CE System are assessed
using the approved CoC Coordinated Entry Assessment tools. The Contractor must
use these tools to ensure that all persons served are assessed in a consistent manner,
using the same process. The Contractor must:

1.1.2.10.1. Ensure that participant assessment information is updated at least once a
year if the participant is served by the CE System for more than^^-imonths

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

SS-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A02 Page 1 of 5 Date
v7.12.23
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within HMIS or other comparable database as directed by the Department.
Staff may update participant records with new information as new or
updated information becomes known by staff;

1.1.2.10.2. Conduct assessments in accordance with the policies and procedures of
the CE System. The assessment process will progressively collect only
enough participant information to prioritize and refer participants to
available CoC housing and support services; and

1.1.2.10.3. Conduct an annual assessment of the service needs of all program
participants and adjust services as necessary, per 24 CFR 578.

6. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Sections 1.1.2.12., to read;

1.1.2.12. The Contractor must collect accurate and meaningful data on persons served by the
CE System, review evaluation results, and offer insights about potential improvements
to CE System processes and operations per HMIS Data Standards - HUD
requirements.

7. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 1.1.2., by adding Section 1.1.2.13.,
to read:

1.1.2.13. The Contractor must determine whether the program participants' eligibility was
adequately documented in terms of their homeless status upon entry into the program
per 24 CFR 578.103.

8. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 1.2.7.1. lead-in paragraph only, to
read:

1.2.7.1. Utilization of a service provision model that ensures:

9. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 1.2.18., to read:

1.2.18. The Contractor must utilize the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information
System (NH HMIS) as the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs funded through this contract. The Contractor must:

1.2.18.1. Ensure all programs are licensed to provide client level data into the NH HMIS
or into a comparable database, per 24 CFR 578, eCFR :: 24 CFR Part 578 -
Continuum of Care Program; and

1.2.18.2. Follow NH HMIS policy, including specific information required for data entry,
accuracy of data entered, and time required for data entry. Refer to Exhibit K
for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy requirements.

10. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 1.3., by adding Section 1.3.3., to
read:

1.3.3. Upon request by the Department, the Contractor must participate with the Department in a
review, onsite or remotely at the Department's discretion, of the Contractor's participant
files and at least one month of financial data to ensure compliance with the contractual
objectives.

11. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 1.4.2., to read:

1.4.2. The Contractor must ensure the APR is submitted to electronically as directed by the
Department.

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials,

SS-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A02 Page 2 of 5 Date
v7.l2.23

v/r



Docusign Envelope ID: 22B17844-B362-4F07-96EF-A23569D7BA27

12. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1.1, to read;

1.1. 100% Federal funds, Title XIV Housing Programs under the Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing
Assistance (Public Law 102-550), by the US Dept of Housing and Urban Development,
Continuum of Care Program, Assistance Listing # 14.267, as awarded on:

1.1.1. March 28, 2023, FAINs NH0003L1T002215, and NH0014L1T002215.

1.1.2. June 11, 2024, FAINs NH0003L1T002316, and NH0014L1T002316

1.1.3. September 25, 2024, FAIN NH0096L1T002308.

1.1.4. May 27, 2025, FAINs NH0003L1T002417, NH0014L1T002417, and
NH0096L1T002409

13. Modify Exhibit C-5, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-5,
Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

14. Modify Exhibit C-6, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-6,
Budget Sheet-Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incoporated by reference herein.

15. Modify Exhibit C-7, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-7,
Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incoporated by reference herein.

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

SS-2024-DBH-12-CONTi-01 -A02 Page 3 of 5 Date
v7.12.23

i/r
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/8/2026

Date

— DocuSlgned by:

i:D0D0SD0<O6344a

Name: Katja S. Fox

Title: p.. ,
Director

1/8/2026

Date

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
DBA Center for Life Management

-*DocuSigned by:

Ut
^, "puAATSScaeAcueA...
Name: Vic Topo

CEO

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management A-S-1.3

SS-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A02
V. 7.12.23

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFiCE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

*-DocuSigned by:

I  ' "
1/8/2026

740704044941400..

Date Name: Robyn Guarino
Title.

1 hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management A-S-1.3

SS-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A02 Page 5 of 5
V. 7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID: 22B17844-B362-4F07-96EF-A23569D7BA27
Exhibit C-S, Budget, Amendment tf2

CLM • FH I

ICoC Funds • NH0003L1T002417

SFY2026 - 7/1/25-6/30/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance 304,116 $ $ $ 304.116 S

Supportive Services 63,032 S $ $ 63.032 $

Administration 6,287 S S $ 6,287 $

25% Required Match 93,359 s s S  83,880 t S

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 466,794 t s $  83,880 S 373,435 s

TOTAL PROGRAM COST

TOTAL -7/1/25-6/30/26
CONTRACTOR SHARE

Activity Name

Rental Assistance

Supportive Services

Administration

25% Required Match

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE

Total W/O Match

SS-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A02

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,

DBA Center for Life Management

Contractor hitials.

y  DS

1/8/2026
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Exhibit C-6, Budget, Amendment ff2

CLM - SHI

jcoC Funds - NH0014L1T002417

SFY2026 - 8/1/25-6/30/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance 830.115 $ S $  830,115 S S

Supportive Services 43.725 i s $  43.725 S s

Administration 21.464 $ s $  21.464 s $

25% Required Match 223,826 $ S  206.620 $ $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 1,119,130 $ S  206,820 s $  895.304 s $

SFY2027 - 7/1/26-7/31/26

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance 75,465 % $ $ S  75,465 0 $ $

Supportive Services 3,975 S $ $ $  3,975 $ S

Administration 1,951 S $ S S  1.951 $ S

25% Required Match 20.348 $ $  18.802 S % s

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 101,739 % S  18,802 S s $  81.391 S s

TOTAL -8/1/25-7/31/26

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance 905,580 $ S S  905,580.0 $ 1

Supportive Services 47,700 $ $ $  47,700 $ $

Administration 23,415 S * $  23,415 % $

25% Required Match 244.174 $ $  225622 i $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 1,220,869 t i  228,622 $ S  976,695 s $

Total W/0 Match

SS-2024-DBH-12-CONn-01-A02

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,

DBA Center for Life Management

Contractor initials_

1/8/2026
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Exhibit C-7, Budget, Amendment M

CLM • NH Coordinated Entry Expansion

|CoC Funds - NH0096L1T002409

SFY2026 ' 7/1/25-6/30/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supporbve Services $  77,158 $ S % $ $ $  77,158 S $

Administration $  3,647 % S $ $ $ $  3.647 $ $

25% Required Match $  20.201 $ i S  20,201 S $ s S

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  101,008 % s S  20,201 $ $ $  80,805 $ %

TOTAL -7/1/25-6/30/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services $  77,158 S $ S $ $ S  77,158 $ S

Administration $  3,647 s S $ S S $  3,647 $ S

25% Required Match $  20,201 $ $ $  20,201 $ $ $ s

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE S  101,008 $ s $  20,201 $ % $  80,805 S $

Total W/0 Match

i/r
SS-2024-DBH-12-CONn-01-A02

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampdtire,

DBA Center for Life Management

Contractor Initials

1/8/2026
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certiiy that THE MENTAL HEALTH

CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact btisiness in

New Hampshire on April 17, 1967.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 61791

Certificate Number: 0007355452

%

%

M
ma

e=3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of January A.D. 2026.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CENTER FOR LIFE

MANAGEMENT is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January 30, 2020.1
further eertify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as
far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 835849

Certificate Number: 0007355467

%

y

5^?

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of January A.D. 2026.

David M. Scanlan

Secretaiy of State
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VCERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Vernon Thomas

I, , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of The Mental Health Center for Southern NH d/b/a Center for Life
Management .

(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on ^January 2, 2026 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That ^Vic Topo, President/CEO (may list
more than one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of The Mental Health Center for Southern NH d/b/a Center for Life
Management to enter into contracts or agreements with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed
above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the
extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the
State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: ^January 2, 2026
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Vernon Thomas

Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



Client#: 1485395 MENTAHEA29

ACORD.. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

12/23/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

NAMEf'^^ NIckl Renaud
riJ^.^No. Ext): 855 874-0123 r>Oc. NO:
a^dUess: nlckl.renaud@usl.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

The Mental Health Center for Southern

NH DBA CLM Center for Life Management

10 Tslenneto Rd

Derry, NH 03038

INSURER B Granite State Healthcare & Human Svc WC NONAIC

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
INSR

SUBR
WVD POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EPF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE n OCCUR
PHPK2608103008 10/01/2025 10/01/2026 EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
'REMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

r  I PRO- I I
POLICY JECT LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

OTHER:

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

$20,000

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

$3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK26028100008 10/01/2025 10/01/2026
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident) $1,000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB883473013 10/01/2025 10/01/2026 EACH OCCURRENCE $5,000,000

AGGREGATE $5,000,000

X RETENTION $10000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS* LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVEl
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory In NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

P01936HCHS2026 01/01/2026 01/01/2027 V PER
A STATUTE

OTH-

£B_

N/A
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT I $1,000,000

Professional Llab PHPK2608103008 10/01/2025 10/01/2026 $1,000,000

$3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)

Evidence of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH

Department of Health & Human Services

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant St.

Concord, NH 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S52259506/M52254787

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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NONPROFIT COVER SHEET

A. Entity Name: The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire DBA Center
for Life Management

B. Entity's Contact Information:

For Records Requests (e.g., resumes of key personnel; audited financial statements):

Name / Phone / Email: Lynda Silegy / (603)490-2309 / Isilegy@clmnh.org

Person responsible for Accuracy and Completeness of information provided:
Name; DianaL^chapell^ , ^ Title: CFO
Signature: ^

C. List Board of Directors and Affiliations

Name (Identify any additional roletsl in

Parentheses")

Affiliations

Joseph Crawford (Chairperson)
Rebecca Sanbom (Vice Chair)
Vem Thomas (Secretary)
Michael Delahanty (Treasurer)
Vic Topo (President & CEO)

Maria Gudinas

David Hebert

Susan Davis

Adam Burch

Ron Lague
Stephanie Savard
Maria Bertolone

Jared Whalen

Deny Cooperative School District
Sanbom Diversity Solutions
Deny Police Department
Retired

The Mental Health Center for Southern New

Hampshire DBA Center for Life
Management
AgeSpan
Retired

Retired

m\m

Korbey/Lague CPA
Amoskeag Health
Primary Bank
Salem Fire Department

D. List Key Personnel (Resumes must be available upon request to the person(s) listed in
section B or may be attached):

Name

Vic Topo
Steve Arnault

Diana Lachapelle

Role

CEO

COO

CFO

Annual Salary

$225,334
$187,000
$189,388

Amount Paid From

This Contract

$0

$0

$0

]
J



DISCLOSURE OF LEGAL ACTIVITIES INVOLVING THE STATE OF NEW

HAMPSHIRE OR ANOTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITY

E. Check one of the following:

[X] The entity is not currently or has not been party to any legal proceeding involving the
State of New Hampshire (or any agency or subdivision thereof) or any other state/federal
government entity before any adjudicative body in any jurisdiction OR

[ ] The entity is or has been party to one or more legal proceedings as set forth above.
Identify the jurisdiction, court or other adjudicative body, case number, and briefly
describe the nature of the proceeding (Attached extra sheet if necessary).

CHARITABLE TRUSTS UNIT COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

F. Check one of the following:

[X ] is registered and in good standing with the New Hampshire Department of Justice
Charitable Trusts Unit (** see note below) or has submitted a complete application for
registration to the Charitable Trusts Unit and is awaiting a registration determination OR

[ ] is not required to register with the Charitable Trusts Unit because it is neither tax-exempt
under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code nor engages in charitable
solicitations in the State of New Hampshire OR

[  ] is exempt from registration with the Charitable Trusts Unit because it is a federal or state
government, agency, or subdivision or is a religious organization, an integrated auxiliary
of a religious organization, or is a convention or association of churches.

** Note: Attached screen shot from the DOJ Registered Charities List found at:

https://mm.nh.gov/files/uploads/doi/remote-docs/registered-charities.pdf

|l432 [Mental Health Center for Southern NH d/b/a Center for Life Manage|lO TsiennetQ Road IPefry |NH |q3038 |G |i1/15/202S



FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

G. Check one the following:

[X ] The organization hired an outside firm to audit its financial statements or to prepare
GAAP-compliant financial statements for its most recently completed fiscal year. If so,
please ensure that the financial statements and audit results are available to be requested
from the contact listed on Page 1 (audited financials may be attached) OR

[  ] The above does not apply, but the organization filed an IRS Form 990 or Form 990-EZ
for its most recently completed fiscal year. Please attach that IRS Form 990 or Form 990-
EZ to the submission. (Form 990 Schedule B is not required) OR

[ ] If neither of the above apply, complete the Income Statement and Balance Sheet below
with the following basic financial information from the organization's most recently
completed fiscal year:

1. INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue Expenses

Grants

Donations

$

$

Compensation of
officers, directors,
and key personnel

$

Program
Services

Revenue

$
Other salaries &

wages
$

Interest &

Dividends

$
Payroll taxes &
employee benefits

$

All other

Revenue
$

Occupancy, rent,
utilities, and

insurance

$

Total Revenue $ Printing,
publications, postage,
office supplies, and IT

All other expenses

Total Expenses

$

$

$



2. BALANCE SHEET

Assets Liabilities

Cash & Equivalents $

Investments $

Real Estate (less any
depreciation)

$

Other Property &
Equipment (less any
depreciation)

$

Pledges, grants,
accounts receivable

$

All other assets $

Total Assets $

Accounts Payable
$

Loans Payable
$

All other liabilities $

Total Liabilities $



n  Center for LifeManagement.

MISSION STATEMENT

To promote the health and well-being of individuals, families and organizations. We accomplish this

through professional, caring and comprehensive behavioral health care services and by partnering with

other organizations that share our philosophy.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliate

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire d^/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliate (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2025 and
2024, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM
Center for Life Management and Affiliate as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about The Mental Health
Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliate's ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are
available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
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and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

•  Exercise professional Judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a
CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliate's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a
CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information on pages 22-28 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 23,
2025, on our consideration of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center
for Life Management and Affiliate's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
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effectiveness of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management and Affiliate's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering The
Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and
Affiliate's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

WUiLcuct^ Wltntiit (Lu^ucdU'r, PcJC

Essex Junction, Vermont

Registration number VT092.0000684
December 23, 2025



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2025 and 2024

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Security deposit

Current portion of operating lease right of use asset

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Marketable securities

Operating lease right of use asset, less current portion

Interest rate swap agreement

Total assets

2025

$ 9,815,282

819,349

10,634,631

1,241,699

1,260,653

305,173

19,787

27,373

13,489,316

3,149,837

3,161,357

4,562

4,609

2024

5,743,025

472,961

6,215,986

956,942

1,709,790

229,176

18,687

27,373

9,157,954

3,276,152

2,851,046

31,936

42,322

S 19.809.681 S 15.359.410

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long term debt

Current portion of operating lease payable

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities

Accrued vacation

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Long term liabilities

Operating lease payable, less current portion

Long term debt, less current portion

Total long term liabilities

175,548

22,082

532,917

505,492

672,841

170,631

370,410

2,449,921

3,860

1,718,772

1,722,632

118,570

20,339

114,623

408,130

614,829

69,254

199,502

1,545,247

25,943

1,872,329

1,898,272

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

4,172,553

14,887,779

749,349

3,443,519

11,442,930

472,961

15,637,128 11,915,891

19.809.681 S 15.359.410

See notes to financial statements
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Activities

Year ended June 30,2025

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

Public suDDort and revenues:

Public support:

Federal $  1,460,071 $ - $  1,460,071

State of New Hampshire - BBH 4,194,364 - 4,194,364

State and local funding 5,400 - 5,400

Other public support 127,570 347,312 474,882

Total public support 5,787,405 347,312 6,134,717

Revenues:

Program service fees, net 28,054,408 - 28,054,408

Other service income 294,630 - 294,630

Rental income 8,595 - 8,595

Other 11,240 - 11,240

Total revenues 28,368,873 - 28,368,873

Total public support and revenues 34,156,278 347,312 34,503,590

Net assets released from restrictions:

Satisfaction of program restrictions 70,924 (70,924) -

Total 34,227,202 276,388 34,503,590

Ooeratine expenses:

BBH funded programs:

Children 7,623,881 - 7,623,881

Collaborative Care 2,239,520 - 2,239,520

Elders 1,176,837 - 1,176,837

Supportive Employment 399,241 - 399,241

Adults Multi Service 9,069,961 - 9,069,961

Housing / Independent Living 3,814,755 - 3,814,755

Assertive Community Treatment 1,000,337 - 1,000,337

Acute Care 3,425,451 - 3,425,451

Non-BBH funded program services 754,155 - 754,155

Total program expenses 29,504,138 - 29,504,138

Administrative expenses 2,163,937 - 2,163,937

Total expenses 31,668,075 - 31,668,075

Change in net assets from operations 2,559,127 276,388 2,835,515

Non-oneratina revenue and expenses:

Realized on sale of investments 362,085 - 362,085

Interest income 251,041 - 251,041

Investment income / (loss) 310,310 - 310,310

Fair value gain on interest rate swap (37,714) - (37,714)

Fraud loss - - -

Change in net assets 3,444,849 276,388 3,721,237

Net assets, beginning of year 11,442,930 472,961 11,915,891

Net assets, end of year $  14,887,779 $ 749,349 $ 15,637,128

See notes to financial statements
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A GEM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2024

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Public suDDort and revenues:

Public support:

Federal $  1,351,630 $ $  1,351,630

State of New Hampshire - BBH 3,117,129 - 3,117,129

State and local funding 28,400 - 28,400

Other public support - 194,017 194,017

Total public support 4,497,159 194,017 4,691,176

Revenues:

Program service fees, net 23,616,999 - 23,616,999

Other service income 517,678 - 517,678

Rental income 6,510 - 6,510

Other 50,281 - 50,281

Total revenues 24,191,468 - 24,191,468

Total public support and revenues 28,688,627 194,017 28,882,644

Net assets released from restrictions:

Satisfaction of program restrictions 111,594 (111,594) -

Total 28,800,221 82,423 28,882,644

Ooeratina expenses:

BBH funded programs:

Children 6,998,091 - 6,998,091

Collaborative Care 1,590,386 - 1,590,386

Elders 1,211,258 - 1,211,258

Vocational 511,810 - 511,810

Multi-Service 7,792,148 - 7,792,148

Acute Care 3,591,130 - 3,591,130

Independent Living 895,172 - 895,172

Assertive Community Treatment 3,043,269 - 3,043,269

Non-BBH funded program services 698,869 - 698,869

Total program expenses 26,332,133 - 26,332,133

Administrative expenses 1,890,611 - 1,890,611

Total expenses 28,222,744 - 28,222,744

Change in net assets from operations 577,477 82,423 659,900

Non-ooerating expenses:

Interest income 136,707 - 136,707

Investment income / (loss) 139,208 - 139,208

Fair value gain (loss) on interest rate swap (30,828) - (30,828)

Fraud loss (43,101) - (43,101)

Change in net assets 779,463 82,423 861,886

Net assets, beginning of year 10,841,440 390,538 11,231,978

Prior period adjustment (177,973) - (177,973)

Net assets, beginning of year - restated 10,663,467 390,538 11,054,005

Net assets, end of year $  11,442,930 $  472,961 $11,915,891

See notes to financial statements
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses

Years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

2025 2024

Program Program

Services Administrative Total Services Administrative Total

Personnel costs:

Salaries and wages $ 19,552,902 $ 1,249,495 $ 20,802,397 $ 17,695,245 $ 1,085,211 $ 18,780,456

Employee benefits 3,452,238 251,291 3,703,529 2,873,247 215,074 3,088,321

Payroll taxes 1,429,041 86,575 1,515,616 1,298,200 76,079 1,374,279

Accounting/audit fees - 56,059 56,059 - 44,086 44,086

Advertising 79,537 37,481 117,018 99,292 17,886 117,178

Conferences, conventions and meetings 39,080 3,202 42,282 135,386 3,949 139,335

Depreciation 356,864 146 357,010 360,009 23,923 383,932

Equipment rental 34,722 466 35,188 41,045 - 41,045

Insurance 4,535 119,567 124,102 4,981 131,164 136,145

Interest expense 124,789 21,221 146,010 132,695 21,989 154,684

Legal fees 17,216 75,906 93,122 33,786 18,470 52,256

Membership dues 16,624 51,262 67,886 4,431 38,756 43,187

Occupancy expenses 2,234,997 294 2,235,291 1,934,311 1,350 1,935,661

Offiee expenses 377,917 64,263 442,180 393,591 60,330 453,921

Other expenses 82,788 914 83,702 122,144 3,008 125,152

Other professional fees 930,046 129,620 1,059,666 519,465 125,910 645,375

Program supplies 399,779 13,618 413,397 329,398 20,657 350,055

Travel 371,063 2,557 373,620 354,907 2,769 357,676

Total expenses $ 29,504,138 $ 2,163,937 $ 31,668,075 $ 26,332,133 $ 1,890,611 $ 28,222,744

See notes to financial statements
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

2025 2024

Cash flows from operating activities:

Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 3,721,237 $ 861,886

Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net

assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 357,010 383,932

Amortization of loan origination fees included

in interest expense 40,921 40,919

Investment (income) loss (310,310) (139,208)

Fair value (gain) loss on interest rate swap 37,714 30,828

Amortization of right of use asset in lease expense 27,373 27,323

(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable, net (284,757) 41,185

Other receivables 449,137 (458,354)

Prepaid expenses (75,997) (37,333)

Security deposits (1,100) 12,262

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 675,045 44,032

Deferred revenue 170,908 (168,638)

Net cash provided by operating activities 4,807,181 638,834

Cash flows from investing activities:

Transfers to investments - (1,500,000)

Purchases of property and equipment (230,696) (173,238)

Net cash used by investing activities (230,696) (1,673,238)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Principal payments on lease liability (20,340) (18,734)

Net principal payments on long term debt (137,500) (132,500)

Net cash used in financing activities (157,840) (151,234)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,418,645 (1,185,638)

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year 6,215,986 7,401,624

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year $ 10,634,631 $ 6,215,986

Supplemental cash flow disclosures:

Cash paid during the year for interest $  146.010 $  154.684

See notes to financial statements
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 1. Nature of organization

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management (the "Organization") is a not-for-profit corporation, organized under New
Hampshire law to provide services in the areas of mental health and related non-mental health
programs.

During 2006, the Center for Life Management Foundation (the "Foundation") was
established to act for the benefit of, to carry out the functions of, and to assist the
Organization. It is affiliated with The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management through common board members and management.
In addition, the Organization is the sole member.

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management and the Center for Life Management Foundation are collectively referred to the
"Organization".

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Mental Health Center for

Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and the Center for Life
Management Foundation. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summarv of significant accounting policies

General

The significant accounting policies of the Organization are presented to assist in
understanding the Organization's consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements and the notes are representations of the Organization's management.
The Organization is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of the consolidated financial
statements.

Basis of accounting

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Under
this basis, revenues, other than contributions, and expenses are reported when incurred,
without regard to date of receipt or payment of cash. Contributions are reported in
accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Accountingfor
Contributions Received and Contributions Made.

Basis of presentation
The Organization's consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("US GAAP"), which require the Organization
to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following
net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of
the Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the board of directors.
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors,
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be
met by actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, where by the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statements of activities.

At June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Organization had net assets without donor restrictions of
$14,887,779 and $11,442,930, respectively and had net assets with donor restrictions of
$749,349 and $472,961, respectively. See Note 8 for discussion regarding net assets with
donor restrictions.

Use of estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Actual results could vary from
the estimates that were used.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management writes off accounts when they are deemed uncollectible and
establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated uncollectible amounts. The

Organization had an allowance for doubtful accounts of $538,892 and $302,947 as of June
30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Refer to Note 3 for additional discussion of accounts
receivable.

Propertv
Property is recorded at cost, except for donated assets which are recorded at estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed on the straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15 - 40 years
Automobiles 3-15 years
Equipment 5-7 years

All equipment valued at $5,000 or more is capitalized. Expenditures for repairs and
maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments are capitalized. Assets sold or
otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along with the related accumulated
depreciation, and any gain or loss is recognized. Depreciation expense was $357,010 and
$383,932 for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued^

Investments

The Organization follows the Not-For-Profit Entities subtopic of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification with respect to investments. Under this subtopic, investments in
marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are reported at their fair values in the statement of financial position. Unrealized
gains and losses are included in the change in net assets.

Finance costs

Financing costs are recorded on the statement of position net of accumulated amortization. In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the unamortized financing costs
are reported as a reduction in long term debt - see Note 8. The costs are amortized over the
term of the respective financing arrangement.

Vacation pav and fringe benefits
Vacation pay is accrued and charged to programs when earned by the employee. Fringe
benefits are allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual
time spent on programs.

Deferred revenue

Amounts included in deferred revenue represent funds received in advance of expenditures
incurred under the respective arrangement. The advances are recognized as revenue in the
period the expenditure is incurred.

Fair value measurements and financial instruments

The Organization adopted FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for
assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The codification established
a common definition for fair value to be applied to existing generally accepted accounting
principles that requires the use of fair value measurements, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about such fair value measurements.

FASB ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Additionally, FASB ASC 820 requires the use of valuation techniques
that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
These inputs are prioritized as follows:

•  Level 1: Observable market inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

•  Level 2: Observable market inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that
are observable either directly or indirectly; and

•  Level 3: Unobservable inputs where there is little or no market data, which require
the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions.

The Organization's financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts receivables,
accounts payable and accrued expenses. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments approximates their fair value due to the short-term nature of such instruments.
The carrying value of long-term debt approximates fair value due to their bearing interest at
rates that approximate current market rates for notes with similar maturities and credit
quality.
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued")

The Organization's interest rate swap agreements are classified as level 2 in the hierarchy, as
all significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly observable, such as the
underlying interest rate assumptions.

Third-partv contractual arrangements
A significant portion of revenue is derived from services to patients insured by third-party
payers. Reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid, and other commercial payers are at
defined service rates for services rendered to patients covered by these programs. The
difference between the established billing rates and the actual rate of reimbursement is
recorded as an allowance when received. A provision for estimated contractual allowances is
provided on outstanding patient receivables at the statement of financial position date.

Advertising expenses

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred.

Expense allocation
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net assets with

donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed
restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in net
assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the
contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are reported as an
increase in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of restriction. When a
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Contributed property and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of donation.
Contributions with donor-imposed stipulations regarding how long the contributed assets
must be used are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions; otherwise, the contributions

are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions.

Interest rate swap
The Organization uses an interest rate swap to effectively convert the variable rate on its State
Authority Bond to a fixed rate, as described in Note 9. The change in the fair value of the
swap agreement and the payments to or receipts from the counterparty to the swap are netted
with the interest expense on the bonds. Cash flows from interest rate swap contracts are
classified as a financing activity on the statement of cash flows.

Income taxes

The Organization is a non-profit organization exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Organization has also been classified as an
entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of 509(a) and qualifies for
deductible contributions.
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

The Foundation is a non-profit organization exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is an organization that is organized and operated
exclusively for the benefit of the Organization.

These consolidated financial statements follow FASB KSC, Accounting for Uncertain
Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.

Accountingfor Uncertain Income Taxes did not have a material impact on these consolidated
financial statements as the Organization believes it has taken no uncertain tax positions that
could have an effect on its consolidated financial statements.

Federal Form 990 (Return of an Organization Exempt from Income Tax) for fiscal years 2021
through 2023 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after filing.

Leases

The Organization determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception. Leases are
included in right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial
position. ROU assets and lease liabilities reflect the present value of the future minimum
lease payments over the lease term, and ROU assets also include prepaid or accrued rent, if
applicable. Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The Organization does not report ROU assets and leases liabilities for its short-term leases
(leases with a term of 12 months or less). Instead, the lease payments of those leases are
reported as lease expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Subsequent events

The Organization has evaluated all subsequent events through December 23, 2025, the date
the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 3. Accounts receivable, net

Accounts receivable consist of the following at June 30,:

2025 2024

Accounts receivable

Clients

Insurance companies
Medicaid

Medicare

Receivable

Receivable Allowance Net

$ 600,327 $ (474,402) $ 125,925
340,449 (14,283) 326,166
613,536 (26,113) 587,423
226.279 (24.0941 202.185

Receivable

Receivable Allowance Net

$ 354,851 $ (264,694) $ 90,157
378,855 (19,052) 359,803
441,709 (14,511) 427,198
84.474 (4.6901 79.784

$1.780.591 $ (538.8921 $ 1.241.699 $1 ■259.889 $ (302.9471 $ 956.942

Other receivables
NH Division of Mental Health
Contractual services / other receivables

2025

1,242,337
18.316

2024

1,404,790
305.000

S  1 ■260.653 $ 1.709.790
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 4. Prepaids

Prepaids consists of the following at June 30:
2025

Prepaid insurance and subscriptions
Prepaid rents

Note 5. Concentrations of credit risk

132,358

172.815

S  305.173

2024

61,121

168.055

S  229.176

Note 6.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk
consist of the following:

Receivables primarily for services provided
to individuals and entities located in

southern New Hampshire

Other receivables due from entities located

in New Hampshire

2025

$  1.241.699

■i; 1.260.653

2024

956.942

!!; 1.709.790

Bank balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") for up to
the prevailing FDIC limit. At June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Organization had approximately
$1,959,000 and $5,693,000 in uninsured cash balances.

Propertv and equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30:

Land
Buildings and improvements
Automobiles
Equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

2025

$  565,000
4,316,119

45,685
1.998.188
6,924,992

(3.775.1551
$  3.149.837

2024

$  565,000
4,093,344

45,685
2.109.179
6,813,208

(3.537.0561
$  3.276.152

Note 7. Line of credit

As of June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Organization had a demand line of credit with M&T Bank
with a borrowing capacity of $1,000,000. Interest accrued on the outstanding principal
balance is payable monthly at the Wall Street Journal Prime, for an effective rate of 7.25%
and 8.25% at June 30, 2025 and 2024. The outstanding balance on the line at June 30, 2025
and 2024 was $0, respectively. The line of credit is secured by all business assets and real
estate.
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 8. Long term debt

Long term debt consists of the following as of June 30,;

2025 2024

Series 2015 New Hampshire Health and
Education Facilities Bond -

Payable through 2036, original principal of
$3,042,730, remarketed and sold to People's
United Bank (now M&T) at a variable rate. Secured
by land, building, equipment, and certain revenues,
revenues. The note was refinanced July 2025 -
see Note 20. The Organization has entered into an
interest rate swap agreement to effectively fix
the interest rate on the note. See Note 9. $ 1,897,730 $ 2,035,230

Less: unamortized finance costs (3.410') (44.331")

Long term debt, less unamortized finance costs 1,894,320 1,990,899
Less: current portion of long term debt (175.548") (118.570")
Long term debt, less current portion $ I.7I8.772 $ 1.872.329

In 2017, the Organization retroactively adopted the requirements of FASB ASC 835-30 to
present debt issuance costs as a reduction of the carrying amount of debt rather than as an
asset.

Amortization of $40,921 and $40,919 is reported as interest expense in the consolidated
statement of activities for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Future maturities to long term debt are as follows - refer to Note 21 regarding the future
maturities schedule presented below:

Long Term Debt Unamortized
Principal Finance Costs Net

ending June 30.

2026 $ 183,437 $ (7,889) $ 175,548

2027 209,018 (8,606) 200,413

2028 219,165 (8,606) 210,559

2029 229,805 (8,606) 221,199

2030 240,962 (8,606) 232,356

Thereafter 1.417.613 143.748") 1.373.865

Total $ 2.500.000 $ r86.061") $ 2.413.939

Note 9. Interest rate swap

During 2016, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap agreement with M&T Bank
that effectively fixes the interest rate on the outstanding principal of the Bank's term note at
3.045%.

Under the arrangement, the notional principal amount is the balance of the note, with the
Organization receiving floating payments of one month London InterBank Offered rate
("LIBOR") plus .69% and paying a fixed rate of 3.045%.
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A GEM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 9. Interest rate swap ̂continued)

The agreement matures August 2025 and has a notional amount of $1,897,730 and
$2,035,230 at June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the interest rate swap agreement
is recorded at its fair value as an asset or liability, with the changes in fair value being
reported as a component of the change in net assets without donor restrictions. For the years
ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Organization reported an interest rate swap asset /
(liability) of $4,609 and $42,322 on the statement of financial position and a fair value gain /
(loss) on the interest rate swap of ($37,714) and ($30,828) and on the statement of activities,
respectively. The fair value gain / (loss) is reported as a non-operating expense of the
Organization and is a non-cash transaction. Refer to discussion of note refinancing at Note
20.

Note 10. Net assets with donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted as to the following areas of support as
follows at June 30,:

2025 2024

Bishop's charitable assistance fund
Aging population funding
Homeless outreach

Access to care

First Steps funds
Collaborative fund

Youth and Family Fund
DCU Kids summer Camp
Earn While You Learn Fund

Endowment Health Fund

Miscellaneous

25,457

11,032

526,696

33,477

4,592

5,729

42,683

10,000

35,000

50,000

4.683

27,759

12,156

360,802

33,987

4,082

8,595

25,480

100

Note 11. Restricted cash

$  749.349 $ 472.961

Restricted cash represents the following at June 30,:
2025 2024

Restricted net assets - Note 10

Pass-through grant funds

Note 12. Emplovee benefit plan

749,349

70.000

$  819.349

$  472,961

472.961

Discretionary matching contributions to a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section
403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code are contingent upon financial condition. This program
covers eligible regular full-time and part-time employees who have successfully completed at
least one year of employment and work at least 20 hours per week. Eligible employees may
make contributions to the plan up to the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue
Code if they wish. Employer contributions and expenses totaled $273,280 and $238,238 for
the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 respectively.
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A GEM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 13. Concentrations

For the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Organization received approximately 75%
and 74%, respectively, of its total revenue in the form of Medicaid reimbursements. Being a
State of New Hampshire designated Community Mental Health Center affords the
Organization Medicaid provider status. Annual contracting with New Hampshire Department
of Health and Human Services-Bureau of Behavioral Health provides a base allocation of
state general funds and Federal funding, which are drawn as related expenses are incurred.

Note 14. Lease commitments

The Organization evaluated current contracts to determine which met the criteria of a lease.
The right-of-use (ROU) assets represent the Organization's right to use underlying assets for
the lease term, and the lease liabilities represent the Organization's obligation to make lease
payments arising from these leases. The ROU assets and lease liabilities, all of which arise
from operating leases, were calculated based on the present value of future lease payments
over the lease terms. The Organization has made an accounting policy election to use it's
incremental borrowing rate to discount future lease payments, which was 8.25% as of the
lease commencement date.

The following summarizes the Organization's leasing;

> The Organization leases equipment under a leasing arrangement which expires August
2026. The agreement requires an initial $30,000 non-refundable deposit and monthly
payments of $1,950 through the term. The lease resulted in a right of use asset and lease
liability being recorded in the year of commencement.

The following summarizes amounts in the financial statements associated with the lease
during and as of June 30,:

2025 2024

Statement of Financial Position:

Current portion of operating lease right of use asset $ 27,373 $ 27,373

Operating lease right of use asset, less current portion 4.562 31.936

Total operating lease right of use asset $ 31.935 $ 59.309

Current portion of operating lease payable $ 22,082 $ 20,339

Operating lease payable, less current portion 3.860 25.943

Total operating lease payable $ 25.942 $ 46.282

Statement of Functional Expenses:

The components of operating lease expenses that are included in rent costs in the statement of
functional expenses were the following for the year ended June 30,:

Amortization of right to use asset
Interest paid on operating lease payable
Total operating lease expense

$

2025

27,373

1.318

$

28.691 $_

2024

27,373

3.061

30.434
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A GEM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 14. Lease commitments (continued)

The maturities of operating lease liabilities are the following:

Year ending June 30.

2026 $ 23,400

2027 3.900

Total lease payments 27,300

Less: Present value discount (1.358)

Total $ 25.942

> The Organization leases facilities and equipment under various operating leases which
are for periods of twelve months or less. In accordance with lease accounting, short-term
leases (leases with a term of 12 months or less) are reported as lease expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Rent expense recorded under these arrangements
was approximately $315,000 and $280,000 for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024,
respectively.

Note 15. Investments and fair value measurements

The Organization reports its investments at fair value using Level I inputs. The following
details the fair value at June 30,2025:

Unrealized Market %of

Cost Gain/(Loss) Value Total

Cash and equivalents $  33,286 $ $  33,286 2.5%

Exchange Traded Funds 2.872.306 255.765 3.I28.07I 97.5%

Total investments $ 2.905.592 $  255.765 $ 3.161.357 100%

The Organization reports its investments at fair value using Level I inputs. The following
details the fair value at June 30, 2024:

Unrealized Market %of

Cost Gain/(Loss) Value Total

Cash and equivalents $  70,272 $ $  70,272 2.5%

Exchange Traded Funds 2.737.002 43.772 2.780.774 97.5%

Total investments $ 2.807.274 $  43.772 $ 2.851.046 100%

The following schedule summarizes the investment income and its classification in the
statement of activities for the years ended June 30,:

2025 2024

Realized gains/(losses) $ 24,909 $ (18,660)
Unrealized gains/(losses) 211,993 118,915
Interest and dividends 88,175 45,188

Fees and expenses (14.767) (6.235)
Investment income/(expense), net $ 310.310 $ 139.208
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 16. Fraud loss

During the year ending June 30, 2024, the Organization discovered that an employee had
charged personal expenditures to the Organization. The total amount identified was $362,053
and was for expenditures charged during the following years ending June 30,:

Prior Years S 178,519

2023 140,433
2024 43.101

Total loss $ 362.053

The Organization filed a claim with its insurance company to recover the lost funds. During
November 2024, the Organization was notified that their claim was approved and they would
be reimbursed $352,085.

During the year ending June 30, 2025, the Organization received $362,085 in reimbursement
for the fraud loss - the $352,085 from insurance proceeds and $10,000 from the individual
responsible for the loss.

The fraud loss and reimbursement for the years ending June 30, 2025 and 2024 is presented
in the respective years Consolidated Statement of Activities in the section Non-operating
revenue and expenses

Note 17. Availabilitv and liquiditv

The following represents the Organization's financial assets at June 30,:

2025 2024

Financial assets at vear end:

Cash and cash equivalents $10,634,631 $6,215,986
Accounts receivable 1,241,699 956,942

Other receivable 1,260,653 1,709,790

Security deposit 19.787 18.687
Total financial assets 13,156770 9,682,136

Less amounts not available within one vear:

Restricted cash (819,349) (472,961)
Security deposit (19.787) (18.687)

Financial assets available to meet general
Expenditures over the next twelve months $12.317.634 $8.409.757

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available
funds.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month
period, the Organization considers all expenditures related to its ongoing mission-related
activities, as well as the conduct of service undertaken to support those activities, to be
general expenditures.
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30,2025 and 2024

Note 17. Availability and liquidity (continued')

The Organization's primary source of liquidity is its cash and cash equivalents.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures within one year, the
Organization operates with a budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources.

Note 18. Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue consists of the following at June 30,;
2025 2024

MCO close-out funds $ 300,410 $ 199,502

Unspent pass-through grant funds received 70.000 ^
!i; 370.410 !K 199.502

Note 19. Reclassifications

Certain prior year items have been reclassified to be consistent with the current year
presentation.

Note 20. Subsequent event

During July 2025, the Organization refinanced the debt instrument noted in Note 8 and
interest rate swap noted in Note 9.

Debt instrument:

The Organization executed a loan and security agreement with M&T Bank to borrow
$2,500,000 in proceeds from the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Bonds,
Series 2025.

The arrangement is payable through its maturity date of August 1, 2035, requires monthly
payments ranging from $16,676 up to $25,550 per month, and bears interest at the SOFR
Interest Rate until the maturity date or an earlier redemption date. The arrangement is
secured by land, building, equipment, and certain revenues, revenues.

SWAP Asreement:

As part of the refinancing, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap agreement with
M&T Bank with a notional amount of $2,500,000 and which effectively fixes the interest rate
on the outstanding principal of the Bank's term note at 4.75%.

Under the arrangement, the notional principal amount is the balance of the note, with the
Organization receiving fioating payments of one month SOFR Interest Rate.

Future maturities:

The future maturities schedule noted in Note 8 reflects the Organization's obligation under
the refinancing executed during July 2025.
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A GEM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 21. Prior period adjustment

During the refinancing of the debt noted in Note 20, the Organization noted that the
amortization period for the closing costs for the original debt instrument were not correct.
Accordingly, the financial statements were restated to reflect the correct amortization that
should have been reported as part of interest expense.

The following changes were made as part of the prior period adjustment:

As previously
Reported Change Restated

Statement of Financial Position:

Long-term debt, less current portion $ 1,672,367 $ 199,962 $ 1,872,329

Statement of Activities:

Administrative expenses $ 1,868,622 S 21,989 $ 1,890,611
Change in net assets $ 883,875 $ (21,989) $ 861,886

Net assets, beginning of year $11,231,978 $(177,973) $11,054,005
Net assets, end of year $12,115,853 $ (199,962) $11,915,891

Statement of Functional Expenses:

Interest expense $ 132,695 $ 21,989 $ 154,684

Statement of Cash Flows:

Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 883,875 $ (21,989) $ 861,886
Amortization of loan origination
Fees in interest expense $ 18,930 $ 21,989 $ 40,919
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position

June 30,2025

Center for Life CLM

Management Foundation Total Eliminations Consolidated

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,723,174 S 92,108 $ 9,815,282 $ - $ 9,815,282

Restricted cash 70,000 749,349 819,349 - 819,349

Accounts receivable, net 1,241,699 - 1,241,699 1,241,699

Other receivables 1,260,653 - 1,260,653 - 1,260,653

Prepaid expenses 305,173 - 305,173 - 305,173

Security deposit 19,787 - 19,787 - 19,787

Current portion of operating lease right of use asset 27,373 - 27,373 - 27,373

Due from affiliate 5,085 -
5.085 (5.085)

-

Total current assets 12,652,944 841,457 13,494,401 (5,085) 13,489,316

Property and equipment, net 3,149,837 - 3,149,837 - 3,149,837

Other assets:

Marketable securities 3.161.357 - 3,161,357 - 3,161,357

Operating lease right of use asset, less current portion 4,562 - 4,562 - 4.562

Interest rate swap agreement 4,609
-

4,609
-

4,609

Total assets 1. 18.973.309 ? 841.457 $ 19.814.766 ? (5.0851 $ 19.809.681

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt S 175,548 s - $  175,548 $ - $  175,548

Current portion of operating lease payable 22,082 - 22,082 - 22,082

Accounts payable 531,601 1,316 532,917 - 532,917

Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 505,492 - 505,492 - 505,492

Accrued vacation 672,841 - 672,841 - 672,841

Accrued expenses 170,631 - 170,631 - 170,631

Deferred revenue 370,410 - 370,410 - 370,410

Due to affiliate - 5,085 5,085 (5.085) -

Total current liabilities 2,448,605 6,401 2,455,006 (5.085) 2.449,921

Long term liabilities:

Operating lease payable, less current portion 3,860 - 3,860 - 3.860

Long-term-debt less current portion 1,718,772 - 1,718,772 - 1,718.772

Total long term liiU>ilities 1,722,632 - 1,722,632 - 1,722,632

Total liabilities 4,171,237 6,401 4,177,638 (5,085) 4.172,553

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions 14,802,072 85,707 14,887,779 - 14,887,779

With donor restrictions - 749,349 749.349 - 749,349

Total net assets 14,802,072 835,056 15,637,128
-

15,637.128

Total liabilities and net assets $ 18,973,309 % 841,457 $ 19,814,766 $ (5,085) $ 19.809.681

See Independent Auditor's Report



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2024

Center for Life CLM

Management Foundation Total Eliminations Consolidated

ASSETS

Current assets;

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,660,669 $ 82,356 $ 5.743,025 $ - 5  5,743,025

Restricted cash - 472,% 1 472,961 - 472,%1

Accounts receivable, net 956,942 - 956,942 - 956,942

Other receivables 1,709,790 - 1,709,790 - 1,709,790

Prepaid expenses 229,176 - 229,176 - 229,176

Security deposit 18,687 - 18,687 - 18,687

Current portion of operating lease right of use asset 27,373 27,373 27,373

Due from affiliate 24,508
-

24,508 (24.508) -

Total current assets 8,627.145 555,317 9,182,462 (24,508) 9,157,954

Property and equipment, net 3,276.152 - 3,276,152 - 3,276.152

Other assets

Marketable securities 2,851,046 - 2,851,046 - 2,851,046

Operating lease right of use asset, less current portion 31,936 31,936 31,936

Interest rate swap agreement 42,322
-

42,322
-

42,322

Total assets 1. 14.828.601 $ 555.317 $ 15.383.918 $ 124.5081 $ 15.359.410

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt S 118,570 $ - $ 118,570 $ - $  118,570

Current portion of operating lease payable 20,339 - 20,339 20,339

Accounts payable 112,261 2.362 114,623 - 114,623

Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 408,130 - 408.130 - 408,130

Accrued vacation 614,829 - 614,829 - 614,829

Accrued expenses 69,254 - 69,254 - 69,254

Deferred revenue 199,502 - 199,502 - 199,502

Due to affiliate - 24,508 24,508 (24,508) -

Total current liabilities 1.542,885 26,870 1,569,755 (24.508) 1,545,247

Long term liabilities

Operating lease payable, less current portion 25,943 25,943 25,943

Long-term-debt less current portion 1,872,329 - 1,872.329 - 1.872,329

Total long term liabilities 1,898,272 - 1,898.272 - 1,898,272

Total liabilities 3,441,157 26,870 3,468,027 (24,508) 3,443,519

Net assets;

Without donor restrictions 11,387,444 55,486 11,442,930 - 11,442,930

With donor restrictions - 472,% 1 472,961 - 472,961

Total net assets 11,387,444 528,447 11,915,891 - 11,915,891

Total liabilties and net assets L 14.828.601 S 555.317 $ 15.383.918 f24.5081 S 15.359.410

See Independent Auditor's Report -23-



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Consolidating Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30. 2025

CLM Foundation

Center for Life Without Donor With Donor

Management Restnctions Restnctions Total Total Eliminations Consolidated

Public suDDon and revenues;

Public support:

Federal $  1.460,071 $ s  - s - $  1,460,071 $ $  1,460,071

State of New Hampshire - BBH 4,194,364 - - - 4,194,364
•

4,194,364

State and local funding 5.400 - - - 5,400 - 5,400

Other public support 76,400 64,134 347,312 411,446 487.846 (12,964) 474,882

Total public support 5.736.235 64,134 347,312 411,446 6,147,681 (12,964) 6,134,717

Revenues:

Program service fees, net 28.054.408 - - - 28,054,408 - 28,054,408

Other service income 294.630 - - - 294,630 - 294,630

Rental income 8.595 - - - 8,595 - 8.595

Other 9.050 2,190 . 2,190 11,240 - 11,240

Total revenues 28.366.683 2,190 . 2.190 28,368,873 . 28,368.873

Total public support and revenues 34,102.918 66,324 347,312 413,636 34,516,554 (12.964) 34,503,590

Net assets released from restrictions:

Satisfaction of program restrictions . 70,924 (70.924) - - . .

Total 34.102,918 137,248 276,388 413,636 34,516,554 (12,964) 34,503,590

Ooeratine exoenses:

BBH funded programs:

Children 7,623,881 - - 7,623,881 7,623,881

Collaborative Care 2,239,520 - - 2,239,520 2,239,520

Elders 1,176,837 - - 1.176,837 1,176,837

Supportive Employment 399,241 - -
399.241 399,241

Adults Multi Service 9.069.961 - - 9,069.961 9.069,961

Housing / Independent Living 3,814,755 - - 3,814,755 3,814,755

Assertive Community Treatment 1,000,337 • - 1,000,337 1,000,337

Acute Care 3.425,451 - - 3,425,451 3,425,451

Non-BBH funded program services 652,665 101,490 101,490 754,155 754,155

Contributions . 12,964 12,964 12,964 (12,964) -

Total program expenses 29,402,648 114,454 114.454 29,517,102 (12,964) 29,504,138

Administrative expenses 2,163,937 - - 2.163.937 - 2,163,937

Total exposes 31,566,585 114,454 114,454 31.681,039 (12.964) 31,668,075

Change in net assets from operations 2,536,333 22,794 276,388 299.182 2.835,515 - 2.835,515

Non-ooeratine revenue and expenses:

Fraud loss recovery 362,085 - - - 362,085 • 362,085

Interest income 243,614 7,427 - 7,427 251,041 - 251.041

Investment income / (loss) 310,310 - . - 310,310 • 310,310

Fair value gain on interest rate swap (37,714) , - - (37,714) - (37,714)

Change in net assets 3,414,628 30,221 2)6,388 306,609 3,721.237 - 3,721,237

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, md of year

11,387.444 55,486 472,961 528,447 11,915,891 - 11,915.891

%  14,802.072 S  85,707 $  749,349 $ 835.056 $ 15,637,128 $ $ 15,637,128

See Independent Auditor's Report



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Consolidating Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

CLM Foundation

Center for Life Without Donor With Donor

Manacement Restrictions Restnctions Total Total Fliminatinns Consolidated

Public suDootl and revenues:

Public support:

Federal $  1,351.630 $ J  - $ - $  1,351.630 $ $  1.351.630

State of New Hampshire • BBH 3,117.129 - - - 3.117,129 - 3.117.129

State and local funding 28.400 - - - 28.400 - 28.400

Other public suppKirt 12.964 . 194.017 194.017 206.981 (12.964) 194.017

Total public support 4,510,123 - 194,017 194,017 4.704.140 (12.964) 4.691.176

Revenues:

Program service fees, net 23,616,999 - . - 23,616,999 - 23,616,999

Other service income 517,678 - - - 517,678 - 517,678

Rental income 6,510 - . - 6,510 - 6,510

Other 41.335 8.946 . 8,946 50.281 . 50.281

Total re\ enues 24,182.522 8.946 . 8,946 24.191.468 . 24,191.468

Total public support and revenues 28,692.645 8.946 194,017 202.963 28,895,608 (12,964) 28.882,644

Net assets released from restrictions:

Satisfaction of program restrictions - 111.594 (111.594) - - . .

Total 28.692.645 120.540 82.423 202.963 28.895.608 (12.964) 28.882.644

Onerating expenses:

BBH funded programs:

Children 6.998.091 - . - 6.998.091 - 6.998.091

Coll^rorative Care 1,590,386 . - 1,590,386 1.590.386

Elders 1,211.258 - - - 1,211,258 . 1,211,258

Supportive Emplo>Tnent 511,810 - - - 511,810 - 511.810

Adults Multi Service 7,792,148 - . . 7,792,148 - 7,792,148

Housing / Independent Living 3,591,130 - - - 3,591,130 - 3,591,130

Assertive Communitv Treatment 895,172 - . - 895,172 - 895,172

Acute Care 3,043.269 - - - 3,043.269 - 3,043,269

Non-BBH funded program services 557,297 141.572 - 141.572 698,869 - 698,869

Contributions - 12.964 - 12.964 12.964 (12.964) .

Total program expenses 26.190.561 154.536 - 154.536 26.345.097 (12.964) 26.332.133

Administrative expenses (.890.611 - - . 1.890.611 - 1.890.611

Total expenses 28.081.172 154.536 . 154.536 28.235.708 (12.964) 28.222.744

Change in net assets from operations 611.473 (33.996) 82.423 48.427 659.900 . 659.900

Non^neratinfl revenue and expenses:

Interest income 127,609 9,098 - 9,098 136,707 . 136,707

Investment income / (loss) 139,208 - - - 139,208 . 139,208

Fair value gain on interest rate swap (30,828) - - - (30,828) - (30,828)

Fraud loss (43.101) - . - (43.101) . (43.101)

Change in net assets 804,361 (24,898) 82,423 57,525 861,886 - 861.886

Net assets, beginning of year 10,761.056 80.384 390,538 470,922 11.231.978 . 11,231,978

Prior period adjustment (177.973) - . . (177.973) . (177.973)

Net assets, beginning of year - restated 10.583.083 80.384 390.538 470.922 11.054.005 . 11.054.005

Net assets, end of year %  11.387.444 S  55.486 $  472.961 $ 528.447 S 11.915.891 $ S 11.915.891

See Independent Auditor's Report -2!



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A OEM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Analysis of Accounts Receivable
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Clients

Insurance companies

Medicaid

Medicare

Allowance

Total

Accounts Contractual

Receivable Allowances and

Beginning of Other Discounts

Year Gross Fees Given

Change in

Cash Receipts Allowance

$  354,851 $ 1,934,498 $ (1,472,374) $ (216,648) $

378,855 4,924,486 (2,276,631) (2,686,261)

441,709 25,713,387 (1,559,024) (23,982,536)

1,254,344 (464,278)84,474 (648,261)

(302,947)

Accounts

Receivable

End of

Year

$  600,327

340,449

613,536

226,279

(235,945) (538,892)

$  956,942 $ 33,826,715 $ (5,772,307) $ (27,533,706) $ (235,945) $ 1,241,699

See Independent Auditor's Report -26-



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT

Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Housing / Assertive

Supportive Adults Multi Independent Community Other

Total

Program

Children Care Elders Emnlovment Service Living Treatment Care Non-BBH Services istrative Agencv

Public support:

Federal $  95,300 $  43,578 $ - $ $  38,292 S  1,269,005 $  6,948 $  6,948 $ $  1,460,071 S $ 1,460,071

Slate of New Hampshire - BBH 130,242 35,586 885 382 181,277 1,066,175 238,236 2,541,062 519 4,194,364 - 4,194,364

State and local funding - - - - 5,400 - - - - 5,400 - 5,400

Other public support 8,000 . . . 55,000 . . - - 63.000 13,400 76,400

Total public support 233,542 79,164 885 382 279.969 2,335.180 245.184 2,548,010 519 5,722,835 13,400 5,736,235

Revenues:

Program service fees, net 11,310,932 1,954,266 1,317,619 268,900 9,037,264 1,696,896 913,595 1.034.678 520,258 28,054,408 - 28.054,408

Other service income 129,308 88,582 37,943 - - - - 4,000 34,797 294,630 - 294,630

Rental income 2,922 1,031 344 - 1,805 344 86 859 258 7,649 946 8,595

Other 1,296 387 189 97 1,631 530 178 588 322 5.218 3.832 9,050

Total revenues 11,444,458 2,044,266 1,356,095 268,997 9,040,700 1,697,770 913.859 1,040,125 555.635 28,361,905 4,778 28,366,683

Total public support and revenues 11,678,000 2,123,430 1.356,980 269,379 9,320.669 4,032,950 1.159,043 3.588.135 556,154 34,084,740 18,178 34.102,918

Total expenses 7.623.881 2.239.520 1,176,837 399.241 9,069,961 3.814.755 1.000.337 3.425,451 652.665 29,402,648 2.163.937 31,566,585

Change in net assets from operations 4,054,119 (116,090) 180,143 (129,862) 250,708 218,195 158,706 162,684 $  (96,511) 4,682,092 (2,145,759) 2,536,333

Non-operatine revenue and expenses:

Fraud loss recoveiy

Interest income

Investment income / {loss)

Fair value gain on interest rate swap

Total non-operating

Change in net assets $ 4,054.119 $ (116,090) $ 180,143 S (129,862) $ 250.708 $ 218.195 $ 158,706 $ 162.684 $ (96,

362.085

243.6 U

310.310

(37.714)

878.295

362,085

243,614

310,310

(37,714)

878.295

n; $ 4.682.092 $ (1,267,464) $ 3,414,628

See Independent Auditor's Report -27-



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT

Schedule of Program Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30.2025

Housing / Assertive

Collaborative Supportive Adults Multi Independent Community Acute Other Program Admin- Total

Children Care Elders Emplpymwt Service Livinu Treatment Care Non-BBH Services istrative Aeencv

Personnel costs;

Salaries and wages $ 5,440,066 $  1,597,052 $ 861,618 $  302,599 S 6,558,709 S  1.320.190 $  687,533 $ 2,445,052 S  340,083 S 19,552,902 $ 1,249.495 $20,802,397

Employee benefits 964,874 284.639 167,320 31,206 1,192,121 285,458 154.993 328,528 43,099 3,452,238 251,291 3,703,529

Payroll taxes 392,434 115,367 59,500 27,175 466,822 98,684 49,838 195,320 23,901 1,429,041 86,575 1,515,616

Accounting/audit fees - - - - - - - - • -
56,059 56,059

Advertising 17,919 4,460 1,399 873 19,851 3,108 1,190 16,016 14,721 79,537 37,481 117,018

Conferences, conventions and meetings 17,409 2,520 942 407 11,880 2,340 854 2,188 540 39,080 3,202 42,282

Depreciation 114.441 34,742 13,547 3,104 100.712 28.505 10,258 41,303 10,252 356,864 146 357,010

Equipment rental 9,897 2.903 1,544 578 10,638 3,187 1,145 3,914 916 34,722 466 35,188

Insurance 165 66 66 - 297 - 205 3,703 33 4,535 119,567 124,102

Interest expense 32,081 11,323 3,774 - 30,194 3,774 944 9,435 33,264 124,789 21,221 146,010

Legal fees 3,695 1,414 399 389 6,110 1,745 655 2.419 390 17,216 75,906 93,122

Membership dues 2,604 237 148 75 10,224 755 258 278 2.045 16,624 51,262 67,886

Occupancy expenses 147,588 42,951 14,317 - 90,167 1,879,806 3,812 45,619 10,737 2,234,997 294 2,235,291

Office expenses 101,015 28.895 11,939 7,350 120,465 42,321 13,228 45,425 7,279 377,917 64,263 442,180

Other expenses 908 223 104 33 946 331 61 235 62 2,903 914 3,817

Other professional fees 225.730 71,648 29,587 11,827 254.707 75,909 24,079 211,066 25,493 930,046 129,620 1.059,666

Program supplies 59,617 17.508 6,993 1,771 61,239 26,652 5,047 65,195 139,722 383,744 13,618 397,362

Travel 93.438 23,572 3,640 11,854 134,879 41,990 46,237 9,755 128 365,493 2,557 368,050

Total expenses S 7,623.881 S 2.239.520 $ 1,176,837 $  399.241 $ 9,069,961 $ 3,814,755 $  1.000,337 $ 3,425,451 $  652.665 $ 29,402,648 $ 2,163.937 $31,566,585

See Independent Auditor's Report -28-



VICTOR TOPO

President/Chief Executive Officer

Successful 32-year career as clinician, manager and CEO in community mental health organizations located
in Ohio and New Hampshire. Proven ability to lead board and staff with a persistent focus on mission and
achieving results. Talent for exploring new and innovative approaches to delivering traditional and non-
traditional behavioral health care. Possess wide range of knowledge and experience with all service
populations, especially vulnerable persons at high risk. Strengths include:

Operations • Strategic partnerships
Reorganization and reinvention • Strong relationship with funders

Team building and leadership • Community building
Strategic planning • Innovation

Collaboration

Professional Experience
Center for Life Management - Derry, NH 1999 - Present
President/Chief Executive Officer

Recruited to manage 501(c) 3 comprehensive community mental health center and its title holding
501(c) 2 corporation, entitled West Rock Endowment Association including two residential facilities.

Key results:

•  Restructured senior management increasing direct reports from three to six.

•  Revenues increased from 6.5 million to 22 million leading to financial sustainability.
•  Established closer connection with surrounding community utilizing aggressive public

relations strategy while also rebranding CEM in 2004.
•  Guided Board of Directors towards more accountability including higher expectation

from management and individual board members.

•  Initiated and implemented Corporate Compliance Program, including selection of
corporate compliance officer

•  Increased year after year number of persons served starting with 3,400 to nearly 6,000.

•  Created and implemented strategy to integrate behavioral health care with physician
healthcare. Integrated behavioral health services into two Primary Care/Pediatric
Practices and two Specialty Practices in Southern New Hampshire.

•  Consolidated outpatient offices toward design and construction of new state of the art
26,000 square foot facility in 2007. Received national awards for design and use of
new facility.

•  Provided leadership and vision to oversee the development and implementation of an
Electronic Health Record (EHR) called webAISCE. Software now includes e-
prescribing and has begun acquiring Meaningful Use dollars with regular upgrades
over course of twenty years.

•  Adopted Neurostar Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) in 2010 as newest neuro
tech treatment for treatment resistant Major Depressive Disorder. First free standing
community mental health center in the U.S. to offer it.

•

Pathways, Inc. - Mentor, OH 1988 - 1999
Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director

Started with managing a small single purpose case management agency with revenues of $486,000
and over 11 years grew revenues to 4 million by expanding services to chronically mentally ill
consumers. Created senior management team and strengthened Board of Directors utilizing shared
vision approach.



VICTOR TOPO

-Page 2-

Key results:
•  In collaboration with mental health board designed one of Ohio's first 24 hour 7 days

a week in-home crisis stabilization program called C.B.S. (Community Based
Stabilization).

•  Assumed leadership role in transitioning 32 long-term patients back to our
community.

•  Positioned organization every year to competitively bid on ever/service provided and
be awarded the service contract. Expanded wide range of services that include
psychiatry, counseling, emergency services and housing.

•  Created county's only Atypical Neuroleptic Medication Program (e.g. Clozaril).
•  Pathways' first long range strategic plan in 1992.
•  Increased Medicaid revenue from $38,000 in 1989 to $431,210 in 1997.

Community Counseling Center - Ashtabula, OH 1983-1988
Case Management Supervisor/Case Manager

Provided direct services and supervision for services to severely mentally disabled persons in the
community. Partnered with local private hospital as well as state hospital.
Key results:

•  Transitioned consumers back into supervised and independent living.

•  Recruited, trained and managed staff of five case managers.

•  Designed and implemented agency's first case management program.

EDUCATION

Master of Social Work (MSW)
West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV

Bachelor of Arts (BA)

Siena College, Londonville, NY

Associate of Applied Science (AAS)
Fulton-Montgomery Community College, Johnstown, NY

BOARD/LEADERSHIP POSITIONS

Heritage United Way - Board of Directors

Mental Health Commission - Co-Chair

Consumers and Families Work Group

Statewide Evidenced Based Practice Committee - Co-Chair

Greater Salem Chamber of Commerce - Board of Directors

Behavioral Health Network - Board of Directors

Greater Derry/Londonderry Chamber of Commerce - Board of Directors

Greater Derry/Salem Regional Transportation Council (RTC) -
Chairman, Board of Directors, Derry, NH

Greater Salem Leadership Program - Graduate, Class of 2001



Steve Arnault
To obtain a poaftyj where! can maomize my nrRlSayertrfmanagemertskils. quality assuwice,

0 me etive pnogram devetopment e)9erience as an educator, customer service, and a successful track record In
the health care 0ivironment

Prefessionel

Experlenee Lead

Healthcare Systems Align, LLC
NotUr^ham, NH

Healthcare Systems Altan.com

1/2010-Present

»  Provide ctXBultation to ̂ er*^, medical practices and practrtiofwfs to establish systems
of Wegrated healthcare that ircluJes pradjc» |K«ems, failing strategies, quality aito
con^jRance strategy, poky ctevetopmerrt, oulccvne measurement and supervisioa

VP of Quality, Compliance Center for Ufe Management, Deny, NH 1/2009 ■ Present
www.centerforiifemanaQement,orQ

«  Senior rmtr^ementposifon in mental he^ center servtog 6000 consumers
Respor^Wfities inclwJe dewdopment inptementaBon and mortoing of strategies ml
systems to avitinuously improve the quality of services to consutwrs. Assure compliance
to state arto federal regubtbns.

«  Develop srxl maintain systenrs to assure lideity to evidence based praitices,
•  Contim»isdeve!opfT«nt of EMR and associa^ staff Irainir^,
•  Estafaltsh and rrantain outcome measures and tt«ir inoorporaticHi into QI/UR iniliath«s
•  Devetop aid implement prcjects to knprove the quaflty of care.
«  Chair oif agency Safety Committee.

CHrectof, Behavioral Health Portsmouth Regional Hospital 1/2006 ■ 12/2009
Services Portsmouth, NH

«  Resporeible for clinical, adrmnistrative and fiscal management of service line which
includes 22 b«j hpattent i^yctfiatric unit Psychiatnc Assessment and Referral Service
and intentepartmentcJ sefvk». Supervision of an Assistant Director and Coordinator,
Responslbte for 85 staff. Oversee the integration erf behaviotal health into primary care.
Manage annual budget of 10.5 mllion dollars.

•  Chair Directors Operations Meeting. Coordinate nraithly meeting of hospital depaftrrsntai
directors.

»  CcwhaH- of Patient Row Ccmmiltee. Analysis and development of d^ systems to
monitor patient throughput Devdop and implement strategies to improve the efWency of
care



Steve Arnault

AssBlant Director of Portsmouth Regional Hospital 4/2005 -1/2006
Behaviora! Healtfi Services Portsmouth, NH

•  Resporsiblefe*'the cWcalarKJadmffiistrativeftjnctjoning of itrePsychiartric assessment
and Referr^ Service (PARS), htenage annu^ fxjc^t of BOOK.

•  Superviskx) of 22 ditiaans who provide psyctettric crisis assessments, admissiorB,
intake and referral 24 hours a day.

•  Superviaon, oversight and development of the Interdefartmental Service; 3 dinidais who
provide psychiatric assesanent, consultation and therapy to patients admitted medically to
thehost^.

Director of Adult Services Community Partners; Dover, NH 11/2001 - 4/2005

•  Responsitile for the cWcal.admirystt^Bfive and financial (4J«afions of the Adult Oi4paient
Therapy, EAP, Admis^rns, Emergency ServfcK, Geriatric and Acute Service programs
(PHP/lOP) serving StrafSxd County. Supervised 4 mangers responsible for 26 staff.
Maiage armuai budget of 3 million ddlars.

Clinical Qrector of Riveitend Community Mental HeaKh Ctr 9/2000 -11/2001
Community Support Prog, Concord, NH

' ResponsWe for the cSnical, adminisfrafive and fisctri operations of programs serving 554
consumers with severe and persstent mental illness. Directly supervise 5 managers
responsible for 60 staff. Development and oversght of arviual budget of 4 nsllion doBars,

Treatment Team RIverbend Community Mental Health Ctr 8/1996 - 9/2000
Coordinator Concord, NH

•  Clinical and administrative supervision of a muftidBcipl'rary team of 12 direct care staff.
Serving an average of 100 individuals with severe persistent mental illr»ss.

Team Leader Strafford Guidance Center; Dover, NH 1/1993 - 8/1996

•  Clinical and administrative superv^n of 8 dined care staff. Serving an average of 80
indlvlduais with severe and persistent mental illness.

»  Developed the first inter^ency treatment team to serve individuals with severe and
persistent rr^ntal illness and developmental disadlies in NH.

Clinical Case Manager Strafford Guidance Center; Dover, NH 1/1992 -12/1993
'  Provided psychotherapy and case management services to individuals with severe and

persistBnt rr®ntal illneffi and substance ataee issues as part ofThe Continuous
Treatment Team study through Dartmouth Coliege.
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Assistant Director/

Behavioral Specialist
Resitfentlai Resources; Keene, NH 1/1989-1/1992

Directed aJI adminisfralive, fecal aid dinkal Kfiwties for 5 group twmes and 3 suppcxted
living anangemenls sennng people witti devetoprnental disei)8ifes. Provide behavioral
consutt^ to individuals with behavioral/functonal chatenges.

Behavioral Specialist /
Clinical Supervisor

The Center for Humanistic Change
Manct»ster. NH

8/1988-1/1989

Provide bdiavioral cor^uttatfon to individuats faang behavfor^furtoSonal chaltenges in
group homes, day programs, vocational and family settings. Supervised 2 clinicians.

House Manager
Greater Lawrence Psychological Center
Lawrence, MA

6/1984-8/1986

Administrative, cliriical and financial management of a group home serving 4
men with severe and penistent mental illness.

Adjunct Faculty New England College; Herxilker, NH
www.nec.edu

9/1994 - Present

Teach grsKluate and undergraduate courses in fsychology. courseSng., program
develofxoent and evaluation

Director of Masters

Degree Program in New England College; Henniker. NH
Mental Health Counseling

1/1998 - 3/2002

Developed and ImplementeJ cunfoulum for ctegree program.

Oversow of cutnculum to insure quality, academic standards and student retention.
Development and execUton of marketlr^ [^.

ProvWed a^lemic advising and mentoring to students.
Faculty recnutment, supervision and monitoring of academic quality

Curriculum Consultant New England College; Henniker, NH
Fall 2012-

Present

Developed cunfoula for a certificate and CA.G.S. m the integration of behavioral hedto
into primary medicine.
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DIANA LACHAPtl.LE, CPA

Strategically focused leader with e.\tensivc operations, accounting and financial management
experience. Possesses keen business acumen and decision making skill. Proven track record of working

collaboratively and driving change to optimize profitability.

Core Qualifications

• Strategic Planning • SOX Compliance • Intcnial Controls
• Revenue Cycle Management • Budgeting & Forecasting • Audit
• Financial Reporting & Analysis • Contract Negotiations • I^hor Management

PROFESSION At EXPERIEN( E

Viet PRESIDENT-CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

riie Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d.b.a. Center for Life .Management,
Dcrry, NH March 2020 to present

Provide leadership and direction in the areas of finance, revenue cycle and cash management. Dev elop,
implement and evaluate strategic plans to improve operating perfonnance.

CHIEF EXF.CU I IVF. OFFICER

Encompass Health Rehabilitation Hospital (formerly HealthSouth). Concord, NH February 2018 to
February 2020

Leader of this for profit, 50-bed. acute care rehabilitation hospital and outpatient treatment center
reporting directly to the Regional President. Hospital is part of a publicly traded healthcare system
comprised of 133 inpatient rehabilitation hospitals, 245 home health agencies and 82 hospice locations

Kev contributions and results:

•  Strategic leadership to achieve discharge growth of 1 5% year over year for two consecutive years in
an industry where 3% growth is the nonn.

•  Financial leadership to realize EBITDA growth year over year of 24% and 19% for 2018 and 2019,
respectively.

•  Organizational and change management to improve employee engagement results by 16 basis points
•  Process improvement leadership to improve patient outcomes and satisfaction.

CONTROLLER/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Encompass Health Rehabilitation Hospital (formerly HealthSouth). Concord, NH January 3012 to
January 2018
Responsible for all financial aspects of the hospital including the development of the annual operating
plan, monthly analysis of results and e.xecution of corrective actions as needed to ensure achievement of
planned results Chief liaison between corporate finance and the hospital.



Key contributions and results:

•  Fmplemcnted cost reduction initiatives to improve profitability by 7%,
•  Restructured outpatient operation to create a viable business unit, improving net income by 34%.
•  Developed and executed a labor management plan to improve operational efficiency and reduce full

time equivalents by 7%
•  Preceptor for newly hired Controllers.

CPA SERVICES

Diana C. Lachapcllc, CPA, Bedford, NH 2003-201 1
Provided accounting leadership and business solutions to clients including cash management,
forecasting, budgeting, financial statement preparation, tax preparation, and development of
internal controls.

DIRECTOR OK WORI DWIDE FOOTWEAR COST & FINANCIAL PLANMNC,

Timberland Corporation, Stratham, Nil 1996-1999
•  Responsible for all financial a.spects of this $550 million manufactunng and sourcmg

operation including accounting, forecasting, budgeting, reporting, product costing and audit.

•  Partnered with the VP of Operations to achieve key cost reductions, as well as, improved
reliability and quality resulting in actual performance exceeding budget by S6.9 million.

FINA.NCIAL MANAGER, CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP

Nashua Corporation, Nashua, Nil 1993-1996

AUDITOR

Ernst & $'oung, Manchester, NH 1989 1992

EDUCATION & certification

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, University of New Hampshire, Durham
Certified Public Accountant, State of New Hampshire
Member of the American College of Healthcare Executives and Healthcare Financial
Management Association

SYSTEM EXPERIENCE

Oracle Enterprise Performance .Vlanagemeiit System, Oracle PeopleSofl, Hyperion. Cemer EMR
and reporting, E-Time, Attendance Enterprise, .Microsoff Office Suite, Ariba Contraci
Management, Maven, Beacon, Tableau


